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RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited (Company No. 1167327)
Strategic Report
For the year ended 315 December 2018

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Strategic Report of RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited
(“RiverStone Insurance (UK)” or “the Company”) for the year ended 3 1% December 2018.

Ownership

RiverStone Insurance (UK) is a wholly owned subsidiary of RiverStone Holdings Limited (“RiverStone
Holdings™) which is registered in England and Wales. The ultimate parent company is Fairfax Financial
Holdings Limited (“Fairfax™) which is registered in Canada and listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange. The
registered office of Fairfax is 95 Wellington Street West, Suite 800, Toronto, Ontario, Canada, M5J 2N7.

Principal Activity

RiverStone Insurance (UK) is authorised to carry on all classes of general insurance business and is engaged
in the run-off of the assets and liabilities associated with its various portfolios of insurance and reinsurance.

The operations of RiverStone Insurance (UK) are administered by RiverStone Management Limited which is
a fellow subsidiary of RiverStone Holdings. RiverStone Insurance (UK) is also involved in the Lloyd’s market
through the reinsurance protection of Syndicate 3500. Syndicate 3500 is managed by RiverStone Managing
Agency Limited, a fellow subsidiary of RiverStone Holdings. The sole corporate member of Syndicate 3500 is
RiverStone Corporate Capital Limited (“RiverStone Corporate Capital”) which is a fellow subsidiary of
RiverStone Holdings.

RiverStone Insurance (UK) has a wholly owned subsidiary, RiverStone Luxembourg S.a.r.l, domiciled in
Luxembourg. This company is currently dormant.

Business Review
Results and Performance

The results for the year set out in the profit and loss account show a profit for the financial year of £121.4
million (2017: profit of £40.6 million).

During several years of consolidating various European based run-off portfolios of its parent, Fairfax, and
acquiring other run-off portfolios, RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s primary focus has been the settlement of its
policyholder obligations and recovery of reinsurance assets in an efficient and economic manner. Additionally,
RiverStone Insurance (UK) continues to pursue opportunities to acquire further run-off portfolios.

On 7% June 2018, RiverStone Insurance (UK) issued 90 million new Ordinary £1 shares for cash and
investments. Effective 28" September 2018, following sanction by the High Court, all of the liabilities and
the majority assets of RiverStone Insurance Limited (“RiverStone Insurance”) were transferred to RiverStone
Insurance (UK) by way of a transfer under Part VII of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (a “Part
VII transfer”), as amended. RiverStone Insurance is a fellow subsidiary of RiverStone Holdings and its
liabilities comprised a variety of both direct and assumed reinsurance business written between 2002 and 2012.
Under this transfer, net assets of £169.4 million were transferred from RiverStone Insurance to RiverStone
Insurance (UK) in return for a Promissory Note of the same amount. The Promissory Note was transferred to
RiverStone Holdings, the parent of RiverStone Insurance (UK), as a dividend in specie and the balance payable
by RiverStone Insurance (UK) of £169.4 million was reduced by an existing intercompany balance payable by
RiverStone Holdings to RiverStone Insurance (UK), to result in a net balance due from RiverStone Insurance
(UK) of £139.4 million. RiverStone Holdings agreed to waive its rights to the receipt of this net balance and
this is recorded as other income in the 2018 Profit and Loss Account of RiverStone Insurance (UK).
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RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited (Company No. 1167327)

Strategic Report
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Effective 1* October 2018, following sanction by the High Court, the 2001 and prior employer's liability and
public liability policies issued by a UK insurer were transferred into RiverStone Insurance (UK) by way of a
Part VII transfer. Under this transfer, net liabilities of £396.4 million were transferred to RiverStone Insurance

(UK).

Also effective 1** October 2018, certain disease claims related to policies issued by the same UK insurer
between 1% January 2002 and 31 December 2014 were reinsured into RiverStone Insurance (UK). This
resulted in the addition of £28.8 million to the gross technical provisions of RiverStone Insurance (UK).

Also effective 1% October 2018, RiverStone Insurance (UK) reinsured 50% of the total liabilities transferred
from the UK insurer by way of the Part VII transfer and the reinsurance agreement to an affiliated reinsurer.

Also effective 1% October 2018, and following a reassessment of its currency exposure after the completion of
the above noted Part VII transfers, RiverStone Insurance (UK) changed its functional and presentational
currency from US Dollars to Pound Sterling.

Effective 20" December 2018, RiverStone Insurance (UK) entered into an agreement with another UK insurer
to reinsure its portfolio of direct and reinsurance asbestos, health hazard and pollution claims. This resulted in
the addition of £14.7 million to the gross technical provisions of RiverStone Insurance (UK). Also effective
20™ December 2018, RiverStone Insurance (UK) entered into a legal agreement with this UK insurer to transfer
this portfolio of liabilities by way of a Part VII transfer. This transaction is anticipated to complete in 2020,
subject to regulatory and High Court approval, and will result in the legal transfer of these policies to
RiverStone Insurance (UK), in addition to the economic transfer achieved via the reinsurance.

The balance on the technical account for general business for the year was a profit of £7.3 million (2017: £11.9
million). This comprises a net gain on the Part VII transfers completed in the year of £54.4 million and gains
on technical balance write offs of £1.5 million, partially offset by an increase to net technical provisions of
£17.1 million, a reduction in the net premium asset of £1 million and operating expenses of £30.5 million.

The profit before tax amounts to £118.4 million (2017: £49.6 million) and comprises net investment losses of
£34.9 million (2017: gain of £40.5 million), foreign exchange gains of £12.6 million (2017: loss of £2.8
million), the gain on the technical account for general business, plus other income of £133.4 million,
comprising the waiving of an intercompany balance payable to RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s parent, with the
difference to the amount of £139.4 million stated above representing foreign exchange on conversion to
functional currency.

Total shareholders’ funds have increased to £505.3 million from £278.6 million at the end of 2017. The
increase in total shareholders’ funds from the end of 2017 includes the profit for the financial year of £121.4
million, share capital issuances of £90.0 million, cumulative translation gains of £15.4 million, unrealised
investment losses on available for sale investments of £189,000, actuarial gains recognised in 2018 in respect
of the defined benefit pension plan of £104,000 and the associated deferred tax debit of £17,000.

Performance Measurements

RiverStone Insurance (UK) made continued progress throughout 2018 in relation to key elements of its
strategy, through the continued proactive management of its existing liabilities and through the acquisition of
further run-off portfolios.

Excluding portfolios taken on during the year, gross loss reserves have decreased by 13% and reinsurance

recoverables have decreased by 44%. Including portfolios taken on during the year, gross loss reserves have
increased by 265% and reinsurance recoverables have increased by 359%.
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RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited (Company No. 1167327)
Strategic Report
For the year ended 31% December 2018

RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s Solvency II available own funds capital as at the end of the year is £419.7 million
(2017: £209 million).

Strategy and Future Developments

RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s primary focus has been, and continues to be, to conduct a timely and efficient
run off of its existing portfolios. RiverStone Insurance (UK) continues to work towards a strategy to settle all
outstanding liabilities and recover its reinsurance assets.

Over the past number of years, RiverStone Insurance (UK) has acquired a number of run-off portfolios of
business either associated with certain Fairfax operations in Europe or from unaffiliated parties. RiverStone
Insurance (UK)’s main focus continues to be the run-off of these portfolios together with actively seeking to
acquire further portfolios of run-off business.

In November 2017, RiverStone Insurance (UK) entered into a legal agreement with an overseas insurer to
transfer a portfolio of liabilities primarily comprising asbestos, pollution and health exposures by way of a Part
VII transfer under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, as amended. This transaction is anticipated
to complete in 2020, subject to regulatory and High Court approval.

The Board of RiverStone Insurance (UK) has undertaken significant planning to prepare for the UK leaving
the European Union and acknowledges that the primary potential impact on RiverStone Insurance (UK) is its
ability to continue to service policies relating to EU cedants. During 2018, the Board approved a Brexit
contingency plan establishing a strategy of seeking to dispose of the impacted liabilities by means of a Part
VII transfer to a third party that is duly licensed in an EEA member state and who could then administer the
run-off. The Board continues to monitor and review this strategy, and the scope of the affected liabilities as
clarification on the UK’s future relationship with the EU continues to evolve.

The Board considers that the insurance operations of RiverStone Insurance (UK) are adequately capitalized
based on the financial position at the end of the year and the remaining risks and level of volatility inherent in
its business.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The process of risk acceptance and risk management is addressed through a framework of policies, procedures
and internal controls. All policies are subject to approval by the board of directors of RiverStone Insurance
(UK) (“the Board”) and ongoing review by the Board, executive committees, risk management (including
compliance) and assurance. Compliance with regulatory, legal and ethical standards is a high priority for
RiverStone Insurance (UK). Its compliance, legal and finance departments take on an important oversight role
in this regard. The Board is responsible for ensuring that a proper internal control framework exists to manage
financial risks and that controls operate effectively; it is assisted in discharging these responsibilities by the
RiverStone Holdings Group Risk Committee.

RiverStone Insurance (UK) has developed a framework for identifying the risks that it is exposed to and their
impact on economic capital. This process uses risk based principles to manage RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s
capital requirements and to ensure that it has the financial strength and capital adequacy to support the
continued run off of the business and to meet the obligations to policyholders, regulators and other
stakeholders. The Directors consider that RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s capital is adequate to meet its business
needs under the regulatory capital regime.
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RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited (Company No. 1167327)

Strategic Report
For the year ended 31% December 2018

The principal risks faced by RiverStone Insurance (UK) arise from fluctuations in the severity of claims
compared with expectations, late reporting of claims, inadequate reserving and inadequate reinsurance
protection (including the credit worthiness of major reinsurers). RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s assets and
liabilities are also exposed to market risk, including the impact of changes to interest rates, equity price

fluctuations and adverse changes in exchange rates.
&

By Order of the Board F Henry
Park Gate, 161-163 Preston Road Company Secretary
Brighton, East Sussex 13" March 2019

United Kingdom, BN1 6AU
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RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited (Company No. 1167327)
Directors’ Report
For the year ended 31% December 2018

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the audited financial statements for RiverStone
Insurance (UK) Limited (Company No. 1167327) (“RiverStone Insurance (UK)” or the “the Company’’) for
the year ended 31* December 2018.

Directors
Directors holding office during the period from 1% January 2018 to the date of this report were:

M. J. Bannister

N. C. Bentley

L. A. Hemsley

A. J. E. Masterson - Independent Non-Executive Director (appointed 8th November 2018)
T. A. Riddell - Independent Non-Executive Chairman

J. S. Saggu — Independent Non-Executive Director (resigned 8th November 2018)

K. Shah - Independent Non-Executive Director

L. R. Tanzer

RiverStone Insurance (UK) has provided an indemnity for its directors which is a qualifying third party
indemnity provision for the purposes of Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006. This indemnity was in force
during the financial year and also at the date of this report.

Future Developments

Likely future developments in the business of RiverStone Insurance (UK) are discussed in the Strategic Report.

Dividends

RiverStone Insurance (UK) paid no interim dividends during the year (2017: nil). The Directors do not
recommend a final dividend (2017: nil).

Financial Instruments

As described in Note 5 to the financial statements, RiverStone Insurance (UK) is exposed to financial risk
through its financial assets, liabilities, reinsurance assets and policyholder liabilities. In particular, a key
financial risk is that the proceeds from financial and reinsurance assets are not sufficient to fund the obligations
arising from policies as they fall due. The most important components of this financial risk that RiverStone
Insurance (UK) is exposed to are interest rate risk, equity risk, currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
RiverStone Insurance (UK) manages these risks within its overall risk management framework.

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in Respect of the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”, and applicable law). Under company law the directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
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RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited (Company No. 1167327)
Directors’ Report
For the year ended 31% December 2018

state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing the financial
statements, the directors are required to:

o select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

° state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102, have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

o make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

o prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the company’s website. Legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

In the case of each director in office at the date the Directors’ Report is approved:

° so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditors
are unaware; and

° they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware of that

information.
By Order of the Board
7 %_7
// /
Park Gate F Henry
161-163 Preston Road Company Secretary
Brighton, East Sussex 13 March 2019

United Kingdom, BN1 6AU
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RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited (Company No. 1167327)

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of RiverStone Insurance (UK)
Limited

For the year ended 31* December 2018

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

In our opinion, RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited’s financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of its profit
for the year then ended;
° have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”, and applicable law); and
° have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: the Balance
Sheet as at 31 December 2018; the Profit and Loss Account, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements; and the notes
to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Our opinion is consistent with our reporting to the Audit Committee.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, as applicable to public
interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical
Standard were not provided to the company.

Other than those disclosed in note 10 to the financial statements, we have provided no non-audit services to
the company in the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018

Our audit approach
Overview
° Overall materiality: £14.8 million (2017: £5.8 million), based on 1% of total
o assets.
Sttty e  The company is a single business within the wider Fairfax Financial Holdings
Limited Group.
° There is a single finance function for the company with operations in London,
Audit scope Brighton and Ipswich that we visited. As a single business there are no group
scoping considerations.
) Valuation of claims outstanding.
Key audit ° Reinsurance recoverability.
MIGIErS ° Accounting for changes in functional and presentational currency.
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RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited (Company No. 1167327)

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of RiverStone Insurance (UK)
Limited

For the year ended 31* December 2018

The scope of the audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in
the financial statements.

Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities, including fraud

Based on our understanding of the company and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-
compliance with laws and regulations related to breaches of insurance regulations, such as those governed by
the Prudential Regulation Authority and the Financial Conduct Authority, and we considered the extent to
which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws
and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial statements such as the Companies
Act 2006. We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the
financial statements (including the risk of override of controls) and determined that the principal risks were
related to posting inappropriate journal entries to reduce expenditure and management bias in accounting
estimates and judgemental areas of the financial statements such as the valuation of general insurance contract
liabilities. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

° Discussions with management, internal audit, management involved in the Risk and Compliance
functions, including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulation and fraud;

° Assessment of matters reported on the company’s whistleblowing helpline and the results of

management’s investigation of such matters;
° Reading key correspondence with the Prudential Regulation Authority and the Financial Conduct
Authority in relation to compliance with laws and regulations;

° Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual account
combinations; and,

° Designing audit procedures to incorporate unpredictability around the nature, timing or extent of our
testing of claim payments, expenses and independent re-projection of classes due to changes in the
structure of entity.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-compliance
with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less
likely we would become aware of it. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is
higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by,
for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of
material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the
greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts
of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon,
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. This is not a complete list of all risks
identified by our audit.
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RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited (Company No. 1167327)
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of RiverStone Insurance (UK)

Limited
For the year ended 31° December 2018

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of claims outstanding

The valuation of the Incurred But Not Reported
(“IBNR”) loss reserves component of claims
outstanding is the most material estimate in the
financial statements and their valuation involves a
significant degree of judgment. The assumptions and
methodologies applied by management are therefore
an area of focus for us as any errors or bias could lead
to material misstatement. Areas of particular focus are:

e The use of appropriate reserving methodologies
and assumptions and the consistency of their
application from year to year;

e The consideration by management of alternative
assumptions and inherent bias when developing an
estimate:

e Prior year development and the appropriateness of
prior year estimates;

o The degree of caution in IBNR estimates in
relation to areas of uncertainty;

e The timing of changes to IBNR estimates; and
Portfolio transfers effective during the year as set
out in note 6.

Our scoping for current year took into consideration
any changes arising from transfer of businesses into
the Company. In order to challenge management’s
assumptions and methodologies, we developed an
independent actuarial point estimate for classes of
business considered to be higher risk covering 77%
of the total gross IBNR loss reserve component of
claims outstanding and netted this down for
reinsurance.

For these classes we considered the appropriateness
of the estimates by considering the sensitivity of the

reserves to the key actuarial methods and
assumptions used by management. We also
considered the development of the historical

estimates to assess the settlement pattern for these
claims.

For 16% of the IBNR loss reserve we tested the
methodology and assumptions used in calculating the
reserve.

For the remaining classes we examined key ratios and
indicators to identify any anomalies and assessed
whether there was any audit evidence that was
inconsistent with our knowledge of these claims from
the independent projections noted above.

We have sample tested the underlying claims data
supporting the testing above.

Based on the work performed we found that the
assumptions used were supported by the evidence we
obtained.

Reinsurance recoverability

The valuation of reinsurance assets, both debtors
arising out of reinsurance operations and the
reinsurers’ share of claims outstanding, are material
estimates in the financial statements and their
valuation involves a significant degree of judgement
around valuation and recoverability.

The valuation of the reinsurers’ share of claims
outstanding involves actuarial methodologies which
are subject to uncertainty around certain assumptions.
There is a risk these assumptions or the methodologies
used could be inappropriate and the reinsurance asset
calculated incorrectly.

Due to reinsurance disputes or the inability or the
unwillingness of reinsurers to pay, there is a risk that
the reinsurance assets may not be fully recoverable, or
a risk that delays in payment could increase the cost of
recovering the reinsurance assets.

A further risk arises from the concentration of a
significant proportion of the reinsurance assets with an
affiliated reinsurer.

We have reviewed the methodologies and
assumptions around the IBNR component of the
reinsurers’ share of claims outstanding, taking into
consideration the effects of intercompany reinsurance
protection.

We have tested management’s analysis of the
recoverability of the reinsurance assets. We have also
independently assessed the recoverability of
reinsurance assets and the status of reinsurance
disputes, including testing the creditworthiness of
external reinsurers.

We have tested management’s assessment of credit
risk with affiliated reinsurers and performed testing to
confirm the security in place for the affiliated
reinsurance assets.

Based on the work performed we found that the
assumptions used were supported by the evidence we
obtained.

Page 12 of 51
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Accounting for changes in functional and
presentational currency

Refer to note 3 to the financial statements for
disclosures of related accounting policies and
balances.

On 1 October 2018 the functional currency of the
Company changed from US Dollars to Pounds
Sterling.

The change was as a result of the portfolio transfer set
out in note 6 to the financial statements resulting in a
significant proportion of total assets and liabilities
being denominated in Pounds Sterling.

Management elected to change the presentational
currency of the company as a result of the change in
functional currency.

We focused on these areas due to the pervasive impact
on the financial statements, as well as the management
judgements applied in the process.

Our work over the changes to the functional currency

included the following:

- We obtained management’s analysis and results
of their determination. We critically evaluated
the portfolio transfer set out in note 6 to the
financial statements, as a result of which
management determined there was a change in
functional currency. We considered the
weighting of the various currencies that business
is transacted in;

- We compared management’s conclusions to the
applicable accounting standards;

- We inspected and evaluated the underlying
contracts to form our own conclusions over the
operational currencies; and

- We re-performed management’s calculations to
test that (i) all balance sheet financial statement
line items had been converted to the new
functional currency at the spot rate at the date of
change, and (ii) from 1 October 2018 foreign
currency income statement transactions were
accurately translated to Pounds Sterling
including testing the system changes to maintain
underlying Pound Sterling ledgers. We agreed
the rates of exchange applied to an independent
source.

Our work over the change in presentation currency

included the following:

- We re-performed the conversion of the primary
statements and notes for the prior financial year
which was previously presented in US Dollars.
We agreed the conversion of all asset and
liability items (and related notes) from US
Dollars to Pounds Sterling at balance sheet
closing rates and agreed the conversion of all
income statement items (and related notes) from
US Dollars to Pounds Sterling at average
exchange rates for the period which we
determined was a proxy for spot rates;

-~  For equity items, we used audited financial
statements to determine the dates of historic
transactions. We re-calculated the conversion
from US Dollars to Pounds Sterling at the spot
rate of exchange on those dates; and

-  We agreed the rates of exchange utilised to an
independent source.

Based on the procedures performed, no adjustments to

the financial statements or disclosures were deemed

necessary and the judgements applied were
considered appropriate in the circumstances.
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RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited (Company No. 1167327)

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of RiverStone Insurance (UK)
Limited

For the year ended 31% December 2018

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on
the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the company, the accounting processes
and controls, and the industry in which it operates.

The company is a single business within the wider Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited Group. There is a single
finance function for the company and no other branches or locations that required scoping. The company
operates solely in the UK. As a single business there are no group scoping considerations and the company is
audited on a full scope basis hence testing has been performed over all material financial statement line items.

No work is performed by component auditors in support of the audit opinion.
Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds
for materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit
and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and
disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial
statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as
follows:

Overall materiality £14.8 million (2017: £5.8 million).

How we determined it 1% of total assets.

Rationale for benchmark | We assess materiality in the context of the company’s total assets given
applied the run-off nature of the company’s operations.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit
above £736,000 (2017: £290,000) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted
reporting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern

ISAs (UK) require us to report to you when:

° the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or
° the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may

cast significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to
the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. For example, the terms on which the United Kingdom
may withdraw from the European Union, which is currently due to occur on 29 March 2019, are not clear, and
it is difficult to evaluate all of the potential implications on the company’s trade, customers, suppliers and the
wider economy.
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RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited (Company No. 1167327)

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of RiverStone Insurance (UK)
Limited

For the year ended 31* December 2018

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion
or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent
material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether
there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required
by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK)
require us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic
Report and Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2018 is consistent with the financial statements
and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on pages 8 and 9, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
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RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited (Company No. 1167327)

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of RiverStone Insurance (UK)
Limited

For the year ended 31% December 2018

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in
giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom
this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in
writing

Other required reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or
° certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Appointment

Following the recommendation of the audit committee, we were appointed by the directors on 4 May 1988 to
audit the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 1988 and subsequent financial periods. The
period of total uninterrupted engagement is 30 years, covering the years ended 31 December 1988 to
31 December 2018.

S TE

Mark Bolton (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

13 March 2019
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RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited (Company No. 1167327)
Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31% December 2018

Note 2018 2017
Restated
£000 £000
Technical Account — General Business
Earned premiums, net of reinsurance
Gross premiums written 44,641 (514)
Outward reinsurance premiums (245,021) 353
Net premiums written and earned (200,380) (161)
Gross claims paid (50,805) (25,408)
Reinsurers’ share 37,515 8,711
Net claims paid (13,290) (16,697)
Change in the gross provision for claims 72,019 43,418
Reinsurers’ share 179,537 (8,513)
Change in the net provision for claims 251,556 34,905
Claims incurred, net of reinsurance 238,266 18,208
Net operating expenses 9 (30,546) (6,138)
Total technical charges, net of reinsurance 207,720 12,070
Balance on the technical account for general business 7,340 11,909
Non-Technical Account
Investment income 12 19,388 10,538
Realised gains on investments 12 9,362 16,605
Unrealised gains on investments 3,129 15,925
Unrealised losses on investments (45,015) (3,905)
Other income 13 133,400 -
Foreign exchange gains (losses) 12,595 (2,812)
Investment expenses and charges 14 (1,460) (1,039)
(Losses) gains on derivative contracts 17 (20,322) 2,346
Profit before tax 118,417 49,567
Tax on profit 15 3,013 (8,960)
Profit for the financial year £ 121,430 £ 40,607

The results above are all derived from continuing operations.
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RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited (Company No. 1167327)
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31* December 2018

Note 2018 2017

Restated

£000 £000

Profit for the financial year 121,430 40,607
Movement on other reserves - 1,144
Foreign exchange gains (losses) 15,162 (24,720)
Re-measurements of net defined benefit obligation 11 104 (3,204)
Total tax credit on components of other comprehensive income 15 (18) 545
Total comprehensive income for the year £ 136,678 £ 14,372
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RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited (Company No. 1167327)
Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2018
Note 2018 2017
Restated
£000 £000
Assets
Fixed Assets
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 16 11 11
Investments
Other financial investments 17 800,220 300,520
Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions
Claims outstanding 7,18 386,190 83,763
Debtors
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations 19 1,254 86
Debtors arising out of reinsurance operations 20 95,689 66,377
Other debtors 21 109,681 110,182
206,624 176,645
Other assets
Cash at bank and in hand 77,014 13,065
Deferred taxation 25 - 72
77,014 13,137
Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent 2,122 880
Total assets before pension asset 1,472,181 574,956
Pension asset 11 8,575 -
Total assets after pension asset £ 1480,756 £ 574,956
Capital, Reserves and Liabilities
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 22 171,904 81,904
Other reserves 38,051 33,925
Profit and loss account 295,370 162,818
Total shareholders' funds 505,325 278,647
Technical provisions
Claims outstanding 7 910,323 249,685
Provisions for other risks
Deferred taxation 25 1,458 -
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations 23 52,876 40,889
Derivative financial instruments 17 322 174
Other creditors including tax and social security 24 10,452 5,137
63,650 46,200
Total capital, reserves and liabilities before pension liability 1,480,756 574,532
Pension liability 11 - 424
Total capital, reserves and liabilities after pension liability £ 1480,756 £ 574,956

The financial statements on pages 16 to 51 were approved by the Board of Directors on 13% March 2019 and were

de its behalf by: L\ /}Y (_W\p/\x

L.R.Ta L. A. Hemsley
Managing Director Finance Director
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RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited (Company No. 1167327)
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31% December 2018

Called Total
Up Profit Share-
Share Other and Loss holders’
Capital Reserves Account Funds
Restated Restated Restated Restated
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1% January 2017 127,104 (1,491) 138,662 264,275
Foreign exchange for restatement of
presentational currency, share capital (45,200) 45,200 - -
Restated Balance at 1** January 2017 81,904 43,709 138,662 264,275
Profit for the financial year - - 40,607 40,607
Other comprehensive income (expense) for
the year - (9,784) (16,451) (26,235)
Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year - (9,784) 24,156 14,372
Balance at 31 December 2017 £ 81,904 £ 33925 £ 162,818 £ 278,647
Balance at 1% January 2018 81,904 33,925 162,818 278,647
Profit for the financial year - - 121,430 121,430
Other comprehensive income for the year - 4,126 11,122 15,248
Total comprehensive income for the year - 4,126 132,552 136,678
New share capital issued 90,000 - - 90,000
Balance at 31 December 2018 £ 171,904 £ 38,051 £ 295370 £ 505,325
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RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited (Company No. 1167327)
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31% December 2018

(a)

(b)

(c)

General Information

RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited (“RiverStone Insurance (UK)” or “the Company”) is engaged in
the runoff of the assets and liabilities associated with previously written insurance and reinsurance
business. Additionally, RiverStone Insurance (UK) seeks to acquire new portfolios of run-off business.

RiverStone Insurance (UK) is a private company limited by shares and is incorporated in England. The
address of its registered office is Park Gate, 161-163 Preston Road, Brighton, East Sussex, United
Kingdom, BN1 6AU.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of RiverStone Insurance (UK) have been prepared in compliance with United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland” (“FRS102”), Financial
Reporting Standard 103, “Insurance Contracts” (FRS103) and the Companies Act 2006. The financial
statements have been prepared in compliance with the provisions of the Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups (Accounting and Reports) Regulations relating to insurance groups.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS102 and FRS103 requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Company accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed further below.

Restatement reclassification of comparatives
All comparative amounts have been adjusted to conform to changes in accounting policies and
presentation in the current year. This reflects the change from US Dollars as presentational currency to

be Pound Sterling. The overall impact on the 2017 comparatives on foreign exchange is shown in the
Statement of Changes in Equity.

Going Concern

Having addressed the principal risks, the directors consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing these financial statements.

Exemptions for Qualifying Entities under FRS102
FRS102 allows a qualifying entity certain disclosure exemptions, subject to certain conditions, which

have been complied with, including notification of, and no objection to the use of exemptions by
RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s shareholders.
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RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited (Company No. 1167327)
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31% December 2018

(d)

RiverStone Insurance (UK) has taken advantage of the following exemptions:

i)

iii)

from preparing a statement of cash flows, on the basis that it is a qualifying entity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows, included in the financial statements of Fairfax Financial
Holdings Limited (“Fairfax™) includes RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s cash flows

from disclosing key management personnel compensation, as required by FRS102 paragraph
33.7.

from the requirement to disclose transactions with related parties within the same group as
provided by FRS102, Section 33.1A. This exemption is available for RiverStone Insurance (UK)
as consolidated financial statements are publicly available for Fairfax.

Insurance Contracts

i)

ii)

iii)

Premiums Written

Premiums written relate to business incepted during the year, together with any difference
between recorded premiums for prior years and those previously accrued and include estimates
of premiums due but not yet receivable or notified to RiverStone Insurance (UK) less an
allowance for cancellations. Premiums written are shown gross of commission payable to
intermediaries and exclude related taxes.

Claims Incurred and Reinsurers’ Share

Claims incurred comprise claims and related claims handling expenses paid in the year and
changes in provisions for outstanding claims, including provisions for claims incurred but not
reported and related expenses, together with any other adjustments to claims from previous years.
Where applicable, reductions are made for salvage and other recoveries.

Provisions for outstanding claims and related reinsurance recoveries are established based on
estimates of the ultimate net cost of settlement along with actuarial and statistical projections.
Claims provisions are determined based upon previous claims experience, knowledge of events
and the terms and conditions of the relevant policies and on interpretation of circumstances.
Particularly relevant is experience with similar cases and historical claims payment trends. The
approach also includes the consideration of the development of loss payment trends, levels of
unpaid claims, judicial decisions and economic conditions.

Whilst the board of directors of RiverStone Insurance (UK) (“the Board”) believes that the
provisions for outstanding claims and related reinsurance recoveries including bad debt
provisions are fairly stated, these estimates inevitably contain inherent uncertainties because
significant periods of time may elapse between the occurrence of an incurred loss, the reporting
of that loss to RiverStone Insurance (UK), RiverStone Insurance (UK)'s payment of the loss and
the receipt of reinsurance recoveries. These uncertainties are inherent in much of the business
previously underwritten and assumed by RiverStone Insurance (UK). The estimates made are
based upon current facts available to RiverStone Insurance (UK) and the prevailing legal
environment and are subjected to continual review, with any resulting adjustments reported in
current earnings. Anticipated reinsurance recoveries are disclosed separately as assets on the
balance sheet.

The costs incurred by RiverStone Insurance (UK) associated with running off the business are as
a result of services provided by RiverStone Management Limited (“RiverStone Management”),
an affiliated company which manages the day to day operations of RiverStone Insurance (UK).
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RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited (Company No. 1167327)
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31% December 2018

(e)

®

(®

Business Combinations — Portfolio Transfers

Effective 28" September 2018, the majority of the assets and all of the liabilities and operations of
RiverStone Insurance Limited (“RiverStone Insurance”) were transferred to RiverStone Insurance (UK)
under Part VII of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, as amended (“FSMA”). Effective 1%
October 2018, the 2001 and prior employer's liability and public liability policies issued by a UK insurer
were transferred into RiverStone Insurance (UK) under Part VII of FSMA.

Both of these Part VII transfers have been accounted for by directly crediting or debiting the amounts
of assets and liabilities transferred to RiverStone Insurance (UK) to the Balance Sheet, with the net
financial impact of the transactions reflected in gross claims incurred in the Profit and Loss

Account. Note 6 contains full details of these transactions.

Translation of Foreign Currencies

The financial statements are presented in Pound Sterling and, unless otherwise stated, are rounded to
thousands. Items included in RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s financial statements are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates. RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s
functional currency is Pound Sterling.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the average rate of
exchange during the year. At each year end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the
year end rate of exchange. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account for the year.

Effective 1% October 2018 RiverStone Insurance (UK) changed its presentational and functional
currency from US Dollars to Pound Sterling. The Part VII transfers of RiverStone Insurance and another
portfolio of a UK insurer led to a reassessment of the underlying currencies in RiverStone Insurance
(UK)’s books and this resulted in the change in presentational and functional currency from US Dollars
to Pound Sterling.

During the first nine months of the year, up to 30" September 2018, RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s Profit
and Loss Account was translated to US Dollars using the average rate for that period. For the last quarter
of 2018, 1% October 2018 to 31% December 2018, the Profit and Loss Account was translated to Pound
Sterling using average rates for this fourth quarter period.

With the exception of called up share capital, prior period figures have been restated into Pound Sterling
at the 2017 closing exchange rate of 1.3528 for balance sheet closing items, at the 2017 opening
exchange rate of 1.2357 for balance sheet opening items and at the 2017 average exchange rate of 1.289
for both the Profit and Loss Account and the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income items. The
impact of this is shown as a separate item in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

Called up share capital has been restated at the exchange rate prevailing on the date when the share
capital was issued, as disclosed in Note 22.

Tax

Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax recognised in the reporting period. Tax is
recognised in the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31% December 2018

(h)

@

i)

ii)

Current Tax

Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year or
prior years. Tax is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the year end.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are established for differences between amounts reported in the
financial statements and amounts reported in RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s annual corporation tax
returns, including revaluation gains and losses on investments. Deferred taxes are calculated at
the rates at which it is expected that the tax liability or benefit will arise using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the year end. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that they are regarded as more likely than not recoverable. Movements
on deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the profit and loss account, except to the
extent that they arise in relation to movements in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Investment in Subsidiary Undertakings

Unlisted investments in subsidiary undertakings are recorded at cost.

Other Financial Investments

RiverStone Insurance (UK) has chosen to apply the recognition and measurement provisions of IAS 39
(as adopted for use in the EU) and the disclosure requirements of FRS102 in respect of the financial
statements.

RiverStone Insurance (UK) classifies its investments into the following categories: financial assets at
fair value through profit and loss and available for sale financial assets. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its
investments at initial recognition and re-evaluates this at every reporting date.

i)

i)

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

A financial asset is classified into this category at inception if it is acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term, if it forms part of a portfolio of financial assets in which there
is evidence of short-term profit-taking, or if so designated by management to minimise any
measurement or recognition inconsistency with the associated liabilities. All derivatives are
classified as at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit and loss at inception are those that are
managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. Information about these
financial assets is provided internally on a fair value basis to RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s key
management personnel. RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s investment strategy is to invest in listed and
unlisted equity securities, fixed interest rate debt securities and derivatives designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit and loss.

The fair values of listed investments are based on current bid prices on the balance sheet date.

Unlisted investments for which a market exists are also stated at the current bid price on the
balance sheet date or the last trading day before that date.
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0)

(k)

Net gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss are presented in the Profit and Loss Account within ‘Unrealised gains on
investments’ or ‘Unrealised losses on investments’ in the year in which they arise.

iii)  Available for Sale Financial Assets

Available for sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of the other categories.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date on which
RiverStone Insurance (UK) commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus, in the case of all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit and loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or
where they have been transferred and RiverStone Insurance (UK) has also transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets classified as available for sale are recognised in
equity. When financial assets classified as available for sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the Profit and Loss Account within net
realised gains on investments.

RiverStone Insurance (UK) discloses its investments in accordance with a fair value hierarchy with the
following levels:

(i) Level 1 —the unadjusted quoted price in an active market for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

(ii)) Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable (i.e.
developed using market data) for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

(iii) Level 3 - inputs are unobservable (i.e. for which market data is unavailable) for the asset or
liability

Impairment of Financial Assets

At each balance sheet date RiverStone Insurance (UK) assesses whether there is objective evidence that
an available for sale financial asset is impaired, including in the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost. If
any such evidence exists for available for sale financial assets, the cumulative loss (measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and current fair value, less any impairment loss on the financial
asset previously recognised in the Profit and Loss Account) is removed from equity and recognised in
the Profit and Loss Account for the year. Impairment losses recognised in the Profit and Loss Account
in respect of equity instruments are not subsequently reversed. The impairment loss is reversed through
the Profit and Loss Account, if in a subsequent period the fair value of a debt instrument classified as
available for sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit and loss.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments comprise foreign currency forward contracts and equity index and US
government bond total return swaps. Derivatives are initially and subsequently measured at their fair
value with movements in the fair value being immediately recognised in the profit and loss account.
Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models, risk models and option
pricing models as appropriate.
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®

(m)

(n)

Investment Return

Investment return comprises all investment income, realised investment gains and losses and movements
in unrealised gains and losses, net of investment expenses.

Realised gains and losses on investments carried at fair value through profit and loss are calculated as
the difference between net sales proceeds and purchase price. Movements in unrealised gains and losses
on investments represent the difference between the fair value at the balance sheet date and their
purchase price or their fair value at the last balance sheet date, together with the reversal of unrealised
gains and losses recognised in earlier accounting periods in respect of investment disposals in the current
year.

Pensions

RiverStone Holdings is the principal employer for the RiverStone group’s defined benefit pension
scheme. RiverStone Management Limited (“RiverStone Management”) is the primary participating
employer and, prior to 28" September 2018, all costs associated with the defined benefit scheme were
recharged to RiverStone Insurance (UK) and RiverStone Insurance, a fellow subsidiary of RiverStone
Holdings, through the administration outsource agreements that are in place with these entities. In
accordance with FRS102, prior to 28" September 2018, the defined benefit pension scheme was
accounted for in RiverStone Insurance (UK) and RiverStone Insurance in proportion to the allocation of
overall costs that were recharged from RiverStone Management in respect of the outsourcing
arrangement. Following the completion of the Part VII transfer of all of the liabilities and the majority
of the assets of RiverStone Insurance to RiverStone Insurance (UK) on 28" September 2018, all of the
costs associated with the defined benefit pension plan are recharged to RiverStone Insurance (UK) and
all of the defined benefit pension plan is accounted for in RiverStone Insurance (UK).

The cost of the pension scheme is analysed between current service cost, past service cost and net return
on the pension scheme. Current service cost is the actuarially calculated present value of the benefits
earned by the active employees in each year. Past service costs, relating to employee service in prior
periods arising as a result of the introduction of, or improvement to, retirement benefits, are recognised
on a straight-line basis over the year in which the increase in benefits vest.

The actuarial gains and losses which arise from a valuation and from updating the latest actuarial
valuation to reflect conditions at the balance sheet date are taken to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income for the year. The attributable deferred tax is shown separately in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. The pension surplus or deficit recognised in the balance sheet is the value of
the pension scheme’s assets less the present value of the scheme’s liabilities.

Further details of the pension scheme are given in Note 11.

Related Party Transactions

RiverStone Insurance (UK) discloses transactions with related parties which are not wholly owned
within the same group. Where appropriate, transactions of a similar nature are aggregated unless, in the

opinion of the directors, separate disclosure is necessary to understand the effect of the transactions on
the financial statements.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Estimation Uncertainty
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.
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RiverStone Insurance (UK) makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

i)

The Ultimate Liability Arising from Claims made under Insurance Contracts

The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts is
RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s most critical accounting estimate. There are several sources of
uncertainty that need to be considered in the estimate of the liability that RiverStone Insurance
(UK) will ultimately pay for such claims.

The most significant assumptions made relate to the level of future claims, the level of future
claims settlements and the legal interpretation of insurance policies. Whilst the directors consider
that the gross provision for claims and the related reinsurance recoveries are fairly stated on the
basis of the information currently available to them, the ultimate liability will vary as a result of
subsequent information and events and may result in adjustments to the amount provided.
Adjustments to the amounts of provision are reflected in the financial statements for the year in
which the adjustments are made. The methods used, and the estimates made, are reviewed
regularly.

UK and US Disease Related and US Environmental Pollution Claims

RiverStone Insurance (UK) establishes case reserves for reported disease related and
environmental pollution claims and future legal and associated expenses for such reported claims.
It also establishes reserves for unreported claims and legal and associated expenses for such
unreported claims. RiverStone Insurance (UK) regularly reviews the adequacy of its loss reserves
for disease related and environmental pollution claims and claim expenses. These exposures do
not lend themselves to traditional methods of loss reserve estimation. Reserving for disease
related and environmental pollution claims is subject to significant uncertainties that are not
generally present for other types of claims. These claims differ from almost all others in that it is
often not clear that an insurable loss has occurred, which policy years apply, and which insurers
may be liable.

In respect of US claims, these uncertainties prevent identification of applicable policies and policy
limits until after a claim is reported to RiverStone Insurance (UK) and substantial time is spent
(over many years in some cases) resolving contract issues and determining facts necessary to
evaluate the claim. While the nature and extent of insurance and reinsurance coverage for these
types of claims has widened in recent years, there has been no final judgement which would apply
to all cases which would result in the wholesale transfer of these types of claims from insureds to
insurers and reinsurers. In other cases, there are US claims similar to UK claims, which differ
from others in that it is often not clear that an insurable loss has occurred, which policy years
apply, and which insurers may be liable.

RiverStone Insurance (UK) expects disease related and environmental pollution claims to
continue to be reported for the foreseeable future. The claims to be paid and timing of any such
payments depend on the resolution of uncertainties associated with them and could extend over
many years.

For these reasons, RiverStone Insurance (UK) estimates that the possible ultimate liabilities for
these exposures could be substantially different from the amounts currently provided in the
financial statements. Nevertheless, RiverStone Insurance (UK) believes that the reserves carried
for these exposures are adequate based on known facts and current interpretation of applicable
laws.
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(a)

ii)  Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

RiverStone Insurance (UK) has obligations to pay pension benefits through the outsource
arrangement that is in place with RiverStone Management. The cost of these benefits and the
present value of the obligation depend on a number of factors, including life expectancy, salary
increases, asset valuations and the discount rate on corporate bonds. Management estimates these
factors in determining the net pension obligation in the balance sheet. The assumptions reflect
historical experience and current trends. Note 11 contains the disclosures relating to the defined
benefit pension scheme.

Management of Insurance and Financial Risk
Financial Risk Management Objectives

RiverStone Insurance (UK) is exposed to insurance risk through the insurance contracts that it has
written, or which have been legally transferred to it, and to financial risk through its financial assets,
reinsurance assets and policyholder liabilities. In particular, the key financial risk is that the proceeds
from financial assets are not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from insurance policies as they
fall due. The most important components of this financial risk are market risk (including interest rate
risk, equity price risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

RiverStone Insurance (UK) has established an overall risk management policy which focuses on the
main risks to which it is exposed, paying particular attention to key risks which impact on the overall
operation of the business. A risk register is maintained which is updated at least quarterly. All risks on
the register are reviewed with key management personnel and the Board reviews the key risks on a
quarterly basis.

Insurance Risk

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the
uncertainty over the amount of the resulting ultimate claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract,
this risk is unpredictable at the outset.

The principal risk that RiverStone Insurance (UK) faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual
claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur
because the frequency or severity of claims and benefits are greater than estimated. The actual number
and amount of claims and benefits arising from insurance contracts will vary from year to year from the
level established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative
variability about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to
materially be affected by a change in any subset of the portfolio. RiverStone Insurance (UK) has a
diversified portfolio of insurance risks, all of which relate to business originally written previously, and
which are mature in nature.

RiverStone Insurance (UK) mitigates insurance risk through the use of reinsurance, both in the form of
third party reinsurance associated with the business originally written and reinsurance with affiliated
reinsurers.

i) Process for Assessment of Technical Provisions

RiverStone Insurance (UK) adopts a consistent process to the calculation of an appropriate
provision for the exposures arising from the business it has written. A full reserving analysis is
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iii)

conducted at least annually and the technical provisions recorded on the balance sheet are in line
with the Board’s view of the best estimate value of the underlying liabilities.

The technical provisions recorded at the reporting date comprise the estimated ultimate cost of
settlement of all claims incurred in respect of events up to that date, whether reported or not,
together with related claims handling expenses, less amounts already paid. The estimated cost of
claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected subrogation
value and other recoveries. RiverStone Insurance takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has
appropriate information regarding its claims exposures. The provision is based on known facts at
the balance sheet date. The provision is reviewed as part of a regular ongoing reserving process
as the loss experience develops, certain claims are settled and further claims are reported. The
cash flow, paid claims, outstanding claims, claims counts and incurred movement are compared
with the actuaries’ expected development of the account by class and year and where statistically
significant, large loss or loss type. Where necessary, revisions are made to the ultimate expected
loss on a best estimate basis.

RiverStone Insurance (UK) uses assumptions based on a mixture of claims information, internal
historical data and market data to measure its claims liabilities. This information is used to project
the ultimate expected number and value of claims, by major class of business, using recognised
statistical estimation techniques.

Assumptions are reviewed and tested regularly in the light of actual claims development and
general market movements and trends.

Sources of Uncertainty in the Estimation of Future Claim Payments

The sources of estimation uncertainty in establishing the ultimate liability arising from claims
made under insurance contracts is discussed in Note 4.

RiverStone Insurance (UK) takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate information
regarding its claims exposures. However, given the future looking nature of outstanding claims
and latency involved with certain classes of claims, for example asbestos exposures, it is likely
that the final outcome, on a claim by claim basis, will prove to be different from the original
assessed reserve for any given claim, although in aggregate, for known claims, the expected
outcome is intended to be close to a breakeven, on a best estimate basis, with neither surplus or
loss being generated over time. This is an aspect of executive and actuarial review which is closely
monitored. In respect of latent claims (those that have yet to be notified) care is taken to assess
historical notification patterns and the propensity of the underlying classes to produce losses (for
example some policy classes are on the claims made basis and no new notifications are able to be
made post expiry). The estimation of future losses will be cross referred to industry benchmarks
and adjusted for actual experience over time.

The liability for insurance contracts comprises a provision for claims incurred but not yet reported
and a provision for reported claims not yet paid. The estimation of claims incurred but not
reported is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimates of claims that
have already been notified, for which there is more information available.

Key Assumptions and Sensitivities

The assumptions that have the greatest impact on technical provisions are those that affect the
expected future claims amounts and claims numbers (IBNR). The most material IBNR liabilities
and uncertainties for RiverStone Insurance (UK) relate to its portfolio of UK disease claims,
particularly arising from mesothelioma and other asbestos-related disease exposures. UK disease
claims are very long-tailed in nature with over 30 years of uncertain future cashflows expected.
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The underlying sensitivity of the IBNR in respect of UK disease claims is driven by the
uncertainty in the average cost per claim assumption and the future number of claims. A key
assumption for the future average cost per claim is the estimate of future claims inflation which

is inherently uncertain.

iv)  Claims Development Tables

The following tables present the comparison of actual claims incurred to previous estimates for

the last 10 years.

Claims outstanding (gross)
Unde rwriting year

Estimate of ultimate claims costs:
At end of reporting year

- One year later

- Two years later

- Three years later

- Four years later

- Five years later

- Six years later

- Seven years later

- Eight years later

- Nine years later

Current estimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments to date

Liability recognised in the balance sheet £

Reserve in respect of prior years
Total reserve included in balance sheet

Claims outstanding (net)
Unde rwriting year

Estimate of ultimate claims costs:
At end of reporting year

- One year later

- Two years later

- Three years later

- Four years later

- Five years later

- Six years later

- Seven years later

- Eight years later

- Nine years later

Current estimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments to date

Liability recognised in the balance sheet £

Reserve in respect of prior years

Total reserve included in balance sheet

RiverStone Insurance (UK) did not write any business in 2013, 2016

2009 2010 2011 2012 2014 2015 2018 Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £000  £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
- - 80291 273692 42,068 60,804 46,615 503470

- - 42907 270357 42,985 58493 - 794,742

- 448000 394976 247417 40460 59,344 - 1,190,197
478,000 402000 415,45 43258 45629 61,607 - 1646239
447,000 412500 414597 231235 39833 - - 1,545,165
466,000 415000 417630 223198 - - - 1521828
465,000 419964 404,653 255,647 - - - 1545264
483,587 414884 406,698 - . - - 1,305,169
480,808 416,797 - - - - - 897,605
493,137 . - . - - . 493,137
493,137 416797 406698 255647 39833 61,607 46615  1,720334
(459234) _ (403065) _(372794) _ (175369) (20596)  (22,405) (3148)  (1456,610)
33903 £ 13732 33,904 80,278 19237 39,202 43467 263,724
__ 646599

910,323

2009 2010 2011 2012 2014 2015 2018 Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000  £000 £000 £'000 £'000
- - 80291 203,123 - - 30641 314055

. - 393907 196,788 - . - 590,695

- 27000 301976 196,137 - - - 825,113
389,000 257,000 318,745 191,813 - - - 1,156,558
318,000 262000 2905597 184,727 - - - 1055324
327,000 241,000 255801 179,499 . - - 1,003300
301,000 220251 250561 213489 - - - 985,301
282,756 20247 251,701 N - - - 754,704
281,780 218,926 - - - - - 500,706
279,997 - - - . N - 279997
279,997 218926 251,701 213489 - N 30,641 994,754
(265775)  (211084)  (225711) (138031 - - (3,148) _ (843,750)
14222 £ 7,842 25,990 75,458 - - 29,067 151,004
373,129

524,133

or 2017 and therefore these

columns are not presented in the above tables.

The figures above have been restated to reflect the Part VII transfer of RiverStone Insurance into
RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited on 28 September 2018.
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(b)

V) Insurance Risk Concentrations

The concentration of insurance risk before and after reinsurance by the most material classes of

business is summarised below, with reference to the carrying amount of outstanding claims (gross

and net of reinsurance) arising from insurance contracts:

2018 2017
Restated
Gross Net Gross Net
£000 £000 £000 £000

Mesothelioma 326,088 159,708 - -
Asbestos 101,276 58,269 55,296 30,397
Italian Medical Malpractice 78,252 59,481 30,101 -
European Motor/ Third Party Liability 59,440 54,134 55,814 55,807
Deafness 44,933 20,379 - -
Professional Indemnity/Financial
Institutions 41,418 21,896 - -
Casualty Treaty 35,306 - - -
Asbestos structured settlements 29,799 20,969 30,295 19,611
Employers’ and Public Liability 29,091 11,699 - -
Pollution 14,557 10,182 13,048 7,487
WTC 6,674 6,674 8,088 8,088
All other loss reserves 122,287 86,817 50,142 38,694
Claims expense reserve 21,202 13,925 6,901 5,838
Total technical provisions £ 910,323 £ 524,133 £ 249,685 £ 165,922

Following the Part VII transfer of RiverStone Insurance into RiverStone Insurance (UK) Limited on 28%
September 2018, the following classes of business have transferred into RiverStone Insurance (UK)
from RiverStone Insurance, with comparative values to 2017 shown in brackets: Casualty Treaty (Gross
£38.7 million, Net Nil), Employers’ and Public Liability (Gross £44.5 million, Net £14.6 million) and
Professional Indemnity/ Financial Institutions (Gross £75.5 million, Net £25.2 million).

Market Risk

i)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises primarily from investments in fixed interest securities. In addition, to the
extent that claims inflation is correlated to interest rates, liabilities to policyholders are exposed
to interest rate risk. RiverStone Insurance (UK) works closely with its investment manager to
review the duration of the investment portfolio in relation to the estimated mean duration of the
liabilities.

Given the short term nature of the cash and investments of RiverStone Insurance (UK), it is not
exposed to significant interest rate risk since maturing short term investments are repriced at
market interest rates on an ongoing basis.

The impact of a 100 basis point increase in interest rates on the value of RiverStone Insurance
(UK)’s investments held at 31* December 2018 is an approximate £6 million loss (2017: £2.2
million loss) to the profit and loss account. Similarly, a 100 basis point decrease in interest rates
would give rise to an approximate £6.2 million gain (2017: £1.3 million gain) to the profit and
loss account.
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(c)

ii)

Equity Price Risk

RiverStone Insurance (UK) is exposed to equity securities price risk as a result of its holdings in
equity investments, classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Exposures to
individual companies and to equity shares in aggregate are monitored in order to ensure
compliance with the relevant regulatory limits for solvency.

Investments held comprise unlisted and listed investments. Listed investments are those that are
traded on recognised stock exchanges, primarily in Europe, North America and Asia.

RiverStone Insurance (UK) has a defined investment policy which sets limits on its exposure to
equities, both in aggregate terms and by counterparty. This policy of diversification is used to
manage RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s price risk arising from its investments in equity securities.
Listed equity securities held at 31% December 2018 represent 75.2% of total equity investments.
If equity market indices had increased/decreased by 5%, with all other variables held constant,
and all RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s equity investments moved according to the historical
correlation with the index, the profit for the year would increase/decrease by £7.8 million (2017:
£3.6 million).

Currency Risk

RiverStone Insurance (UK) manages its foreign exchange risk against its functional currency,
which is the Pound Sterling. RiverStone Insurance (UK) has a proportion of its assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than the US Dollar, the most significant being the Euro
and US Dollar. RiverStone Insurance (UK) seeks to mitigate the risk by matching the estimated
foreign currency denominated liabilities with assets denominated in the same currency and by the
utilisation of forward currency contracts.

As at 31" December 2017, the functional currency for RiverStone Insurance (UK) was US
Dollars. On 1* October 2018, after the completion of the Part VII transfers of RiverStone
Insurance into RiverStone Insurance (UK) and the liabilities of a third party UK insurer, the
functional and presentational currency was changed to Pound Sterling. The comparatives shown
in this section are the Pound Sterling equivalent of the US Dollar amounts reported at end of
December 2017.

At 31% December 2018, if the Euro had weakened by 10% more than the actual 2018 movement
against the Pound Sterling with all other variables held constant, profit for the year would have
been £6,000 lower (2017: £181,500 lower), mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gains on
the translation of Pound Sterling denominated financial assets and Pound Sterling denominated
liabilities, after forward currency contracts are taken into account.

At 31% December 2018, if the US Dollar had weakened by 10% more than the actual 2018
movement against the Pound Sterling with all other variables held constant, profit for the year
would have been £1.8 million lower (2017: £1.1 million higher), mainly as a result of net foreign
exchange gains on the translation of Pound Sterling denominated financial assets, and Pound
Sterling denominated liabilities, after forward currency contracts are taken into account.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. Key areas
where RiverStone Insurance (UK) is exposed to credit risk are:

reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities;
amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims already paid;
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amounts due from insurance intermediaries;

amounts due from corporate bond issuers;

counterparty risk with respect to derivative transactions; and
cash at bank and in hand.

As RiverStone Insurance (UK) is in runoff its exposures to reinsurers and insurance intermediaries are
determined by contracts previously written. RiverStone Insurance (UK) manages the levels of credit
risk from reinsurers and insurance intermediaries by quarterly review of receivable balances by
counterparty. Management assesses the creditworthiness of all reinsurers and intermediaries by
reviewing credit grades provided by rating agencies and other publicly available financial information.
It is RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s policy to provide for reinsurer bad debts in situations where it does
not expect to collect the full amount outstanding due to the financial position of the reinsurer or due to
disputes over coverage. In certain circumstances, collateral is held in order to mitigate RiverStone
Insurance (UK)’s credit risk exposure. This collateral is in the form of security accounts, deposits and
letters of credit from reinsurers.

RiverStone Insurance (UK) reduces its exposure to credit risk in relation to investments by entering into
transactions with counterparties that are reputable and by settling trades through recognized exchanges.
RiverStone Insurance (UK) maintains strict control limits on open derivative positions. The amount
subject to credit risk at any one time is limited to the current fair value of derivative financial assets.
RiverStone Insurance (UK) specifically monitors its exposure to the credit risk of the loan receivable
that it has from an affiliated company. RiverStone Insurance (UK) reviews the financial performance
of the affiliated entity on a quarterly basis.

The assets bearing credit risk are summarized below, together with an analysis by credit rating (AM
Best or equivalent):

2018 2017

Restated

£000 £000

Derivative financial instruments 3,282 339
Debt securities 588,831 201,249
Assets arising from reinsurance contracts held 481,879 150,140
Cash at bank and in hand 77,014 13,065
Affiliated loan receivable 105,127 84,748
Total assets bearing credit risk £ 1256133 £ 449,541
A++ 220,484 184,284
A+ 48,701 6,364
A, A- 450,325 8,234
B++ and below or not rated (including affiliated assets) 536,623 250,659
Total assets bearing credit risk £ 1,256,133 £ 449,541

£118.3 million of reinsurance recoverables relates to ceding of risk to an unrated insurer. The balance
has been presented as B++ given it is backed by its ultimate parent Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited.

Assets arising from reinsurance contracts held, including premium receivable are further analysed as
follows:
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2018 2017

Restated

£000 £000

Performing 481,264 149,175

Past due 615 965

Impaired 2,295 6,484
Provision for irrecoverable amounts (2,295) (6,484)

Total £ 481,879 £ 150,140

(@) Liquidity Risk

The primary liquidity risk is the obligation to pay claims to policy holders as they fall due. The projected
settlement of these liabilities is modelled, on a regular basis, using a combination of operational
cashflow forecasting and actuarial techniques. The Board sets limits on the minimum proportion of
maturing funds available to meet such calls and on the minimum level of borrowing facilities that should
be in place to cover anticipated liabilities and unexpected levels of demand. The table below analyses
the maturity of RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s financial liabilities and outstanding claims. All liabilities
are presented on a contractual cash flow basis except for the insurance liabilities, which are presented
in their expected cash flows.

No
Contractual < 6 months Between 6 Between 1 Between 2
Maturity or on months year and years and >5 Carrying
Date Demand and 1 year 2 years S years Years Value
Restated Restated Restated Restated Restated Restated Restated
£000 £000 £°000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 December 2018
Financial liabilities under - 322 - - - - 322
investment contracts
Creditors - 20,151 4,255 4,508 6,301 29,571 64,786
- 20,472 4,255 4,508 6,301 29,571 65,108
Claims outstanding - 54,728 54,728 78,910 171,576 550,381 910,323
Financial liabilities and
outstanding claims £ L 75,200 £ 58,983 £ 83418 £ 177,877 &£ 579,952 £ 975,431
At 31 December 2017
Financial liabilities under
investment contracts - 174 - - - - 174
Creditors - 12,340 2,992 5,859 15,159 10,100 46,450
- 12,514 2,992 5,859 15,159 10,100 46,624
Claims outstanding - 14,199 14,199 19,709 50,917 150,661 249,685
Financial liabilities and
outstanding claims £ - £ 26,713 £ 17,191 £ 25,568 £ 66,076 £ 160,761 £ 296,309
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(e)

Capital Management

RiverStone Insurance (UK) maintains an efficient capital structure comprising only its equity
shareholders’ funds, consistent with its risk profile and the regulatory and market requirements of its
business. RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s objectives in managing its capital are:

o to satisfy the requirements of its policyholders, regulators and other stakeholders;
. to match the profile of its assets and liabilities, taking account of the risks inherent in the business;
. to retain financial flexibility by maintaining adequate liquidity

RiverStone Insurance (UK) considers not only the traditional sources of capital funding but the
alternative sources of capital including reinsurance and securitisation, as appropriate, when assessing its
deployment and usage of capital. RiverStone Insurance (UK) manages as capital all items that are
eligible to be treated as capital for regulatory purposes. RiverStone Insurance (UK) is regulated by the
Prudential Regulation Authority and Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA”) and is subject to insurance
solvency regulations which specify the minimum amount and type of capital that must be held in
addition to the insurance liabilities. RiverStone Insurance (UK) manages capital in accordance with
these rules and performs the necessary tests to ensure continuous and full compliance with such
regulations. RiverStone Insurance (UK) manages its own regulatory capital by reference to both
minimum capital requirements and also self-assessed risk-based capital determined under EU Directive.
RiverStone Insurance (UK) has complied with all of its capital requirements throughout the year.

At the end of the year, RiverStone Insurance (UK) held Solvency II available own funds capital of
£419.7 million (2017: £209.4 million).

Portfolio Transfers

Effective 28" September 2018, following sanction by the High Court, all of the liabilities and the
majority of the assets of RiverStone Insurance were transferred to RiverStone Insurance (UK) by way
of a Part VII transfer under FSMA. RiverStone Insurance is a fellow subsidiary of RiverStone Holdings
and its liabilities comprise a variety of both direct and assumed reinsurance business written between
2002 and 2012. Under this transfer, net assets of £169.4 million were transferred to RiverStone
Insurance (UK) in return for a Promissory Note of the same amount. The Promissory Note was as
transferred from RiverStone Insurance to RiverStone Holdings as a dividend in specie, the parent of
RiverStone Insurance (UK) and the balance payable by RiverStone Insurance (UK) of £169.4 million
was reduced by an existing intercompany balance payable by RiverStone Holdings to RiverStone
Insurance (UK), to result in a net balance due from RiverStone Insurance (UK) of £139.4 million.
RiverStone Holdings agreed to waive its rights to the receipt of this net balance and this is recorded as
other income in the Profit and Loss Account.

Effective 1% October 2018, following sanction by the High Court, the 2001 and prior employer's liability
and public liability policies issued by a UK insurer were transferred into RiverStone Insurance (UK) by
way of a Part VII transfer under FSMA. Under this transfer, net liabilities of £396.4 million were
transferred to RiverStone Insurance (UK).

The book value of net assets subject to transfer into RiverStone Insurance (UK) as a result of these two
Part VII transfers was as follows:
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Gross Gross
Portfolio Assets Liabilities
£000 £000
RiverStone Insurance Limited 410,410 241,012
Other UK insurer 24,200 420,600

7. Reconciliation of Technical Provisions

A reconciliation of the changes to RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s gross, ceded and net loss reserves from
1%t January 2018 to 31 December 2018, taking into consideration the effects of the reserves transferred
to RiverStone Insurance (UK) under Part VII transfers and new reinsurance transactions is as follows:

Gross Ceded Net

£000 £000 £000
Amounts at 1% January 2018 249,685 83,763 165,922
Amounts paid during the year (50,805) (37,515) (13,290)
Change in estimate of reserves 9,254 (2,950) 12,204
Reinsurance of new liabilities 43,500 - 43,500
Amounts transferred under Part VII transfers 650,085 126,900 523,185
New ceded reinsurances entered into - 212,568 (212,568)
Technical balances write off (1,559) - (1,559)
Foreign exchange 10,163 3,424 6,739
Amounts at 31% December 2018 £ 910,323 £ 386,190 £ 524,133

The difference between the change in estimate of reserves as disclosed in the above table and as
disclosed in the Profit and Loss Account is as a result of the following transactions completed during
2018, which are shown in separately in the table above:

Effective 28" September 2018, RiverStone Insurance’s gross and ceded technical provisions of £235.8
million and £109.0 million, respectively, were transferred by Part VII to RiverStone Insurance (UK).

Effective 1 October 2018, a UK insurer’s gross and ceded technical provisions of £420.6 million and
£24.2 million respectively were transferred by Part VII to RiverStone Insurance (UK) for consideration
of £474.1 million. The resulting net gain of £77.7 million is reported within the change in the gross
provision for claims in the profit and loss account. Net operating expenses, in Note 9, include a profit
commission payable to the UK insurer of £14.1 million in connection with this transaction.

Also effective 1% October 2018, certain disease claims related to policies issued by the same UK insurer
between 1% January 2002 and 31* December 2014 were reinsured into RiverStone Insurance (UK). This
resulted in the addition of £28.8 million to the gross technical provisions of RiverStone Insurance (UK).

Effective 1% October 2018, 50% of all the liabilities transferred to RiverStone Insurance (UK) from the
UK insurer by way of the Part VII transfer and reinsurance arrangement, amounting to £212.6 million,
were reinsured with an affiliated reinsurer.

Effective 20" December 2018, RiverStone Insurance (UK) entered into an agreement with another UK
insurer to reinsure net technical provisions of £14.7 million.
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8.  Analysis of Gross Business

Gross Gross Gross Gross Re-
premiums premiums claims operating insurance
written earned incurred expenses balance
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Direct Insurance
Motor - - (354) (187) 524
Marine, aviation and - - 64 (34) 438
transport
Fire and other damage to - - (589) (310) (16)
property
Third-party liability - - (18,508) 9,747) (36,881)
Miscellaneous - - (366) (193) (577)
- - (19,754) (10,470) (36,511)
Reinsurance acceptances 44,641 44,641 40,968 (21,574) 10,040
Total £ 44,641 £ 44,641 £ 21,214 £ (32,044) £ (26,471)
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
Restated Restated Restated Restated Restated
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Direct Insurance
Motor 14 14 (623) 71) (26)
Marine, aviation and
transport 6) (6) 367 20 (192)
Fire and other damage to
property 32 32 6 (19) -
Third-party liability (309) (309) 34,391 (2,210) (34,179)
Miscellaneous 8 8 (8) (5) 17
(261) (261) 34,133 (2,285) (34,380)
Reinsurance acceptances (253) (253) (16,123) (4,776) 35,854
Total £ (514) £ (514) £ 18,010 £ (7,061) £ 1,474
9.  Net Operating Expenses
2018 2017
Restated
£000 £000
Administrative expenses 13,849 6,138
Commissions payable 16,697 -

£ 30,546 £ 6,138

RiverStone Insurance (UK) has no employees. The administration of RiverStone Insurance (UK) is
carried out by RiverStone Management, a fellow subsidiary, which also provides these services to other
group companies.
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10.

11.

The Directors receive no emoluments from RiverStone Insurance (UK). The contracts of employment
of the U.K. executive Directors and employees are with RiverStone Management which makes charges
to RiverStone Insurance (UK) for the services described above. Emoluments paid by RiverStone
Management to the Directors of RiverStone Insurance (UK) in respect of their services as directors of
RiverStone Insurance (UK) are summarised below. These amounts represent emoluments based on an
apportionment of the Directors’ time.

Commissions payable includes profit commissions payable arising in connection with the Part VII
transfer of 2001 and prior employer's liability and public liability policies issued by a UK insurer, which
was completed in 2018.

2018 2017

Restated

£000 £000

Aggregate emoluments £ 710 £ 648

Retirement benefits are accruing to four directors (2017: four) under a defined benefit pension scheme.
During the year one director exercised share options (2017: none).

The Directors’ remuneration disclosed above includes the following amounts paid to the highest paid
Director:

2018 2017

Restated

£000 £000

Aggregate emoluments £ 308 £ 247

As at 31* December 2018 a pension of £60,900 per annum (2017: £72,829) was accrued under a defined
benefit pension scheme for the highest paid Director.

Auditors’ Remuneration

2018 2017

Restated

£000 £000

Audit 618 248
Audit related assurance services - 57
Other non-audit services 28 12
£ 646 £ 317

Pension Costs

RiverStone Holdings Limited (“RiverStone Holdings”) is the principal employer for the RiverStone
group’s defined benefit scheme (“the Plan”). The Plan was closed to new entrants with effect from 1%
January 2003 and its funds are administered by trustees. The Plan is non-contributory for members. The
Plan’s statutory funding objective is to hold sufficient and appropriate assets to cover its technical
provisions. Company contributions are paid to the Plan in accordance with the recommendations of an
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independent actuarial advisor. As the Plan is closed to new entrants, under the method used to calculate
pension costs in accordance with FRS102, the cost as a percentage of covered pensionable payroll will
tend to increase as the average age of the membership increases.

RiverStone Management is the primary participating employer of the Plan. RiverStone Management
pays contributions into the Plan and, until 28" September 2018, these were recharged to RiverStone
Insurance (UK) and RiverStone Insurance in accordance with the administration outsource agreements
that are in place. The amount of contribution to be paid by each entity is determined by reference to the
allocation of overall costs for the year in accordance with the outsource agreements.

In accordance with FRS102, until 28" September 2018, the Plan is accounted for in the financial
statements of RiverStone Insurance (UK) and RiverStone Insurance, in proportion to the allocation of
the contributions that are recharged from RiverStone Management.

Effective 28" September 2018, following sanction by the High Court, all of the liabilities and the
majority of the assets of RiverStone Insurance were transferred to RiverStone Insurance by way of a
Part VII transfer under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, as amended. Subsequently, all of
the costs associated with the defined benefit pension plan are recharged to RiverStone Insurance (UK)
only and all of the defined benefit pension plan is accounted for in RiverStone Insurance (UK).

The last full actuarial valuation of the Plan was carried out as at 31 March 2017. The results from the
31 March 2017 actuarial valuation have been updated to 31% December 2018, in line with the
requirements of FRS102, and to reflect changes in market conditions, in order to measure the defined
benefit obligation as at 31% December 2018. The principal actuarial assumptions used in the
measurement of the defined benefit obligation as at 31% December 2018 are as follows:

31* December 31° December

2018 2017

RPI inflation 3.3% 3.2%
CPlinflation 2.2% 2.1%
Discount rate 3.0% 2.6%
Rate of increase in salaries 3.8% 3.8%
Pension increases in payment (RPI capped at 5%) 3.1% 3.1%
Pension increases in payment (RPI capped at 2.5%) 2.1% 2.1%
Pension increases in payment (CPI capped at 5%) 2.2% 2.1%
Pension increases in payment (CPI capped at 3%) 2.0% 1.9%

The net amounts included in the balance sheet arising from the obligations in respect of the Plan are as
follows. These comprise the amounts in respect of the total Plan and those in respect of RiverStone
Insurance (UK)’s share.

31 December 2018 315t December 2017
Restated
Total Share Total Share
£000 £000 £000 £000
Present value of defined benefit obligation (106,763) (105,210) (114,236) (65,523)
Fair value of plan assets 115,338 113,785 113,506 65,100
Surplus (deficit) included in balance sheet 8,575 8,575 (730) (423)
Related deferred tax asset (liability) recognised (1,458) (1,458) 124 72
Asset (liability) net of deferred tax £ 7,117 £ 7,117 £ 606) £ (351)
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Changes in the present value of the RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s share of the total Plan defined
benefit obligation are as follows:

2018
Share
£000
Opening defined benefit obligation 65,523
RiverStone Insurance share of defined benefit obligation transferred 44,628
Employer’s part of current service cost 930
Interest expense 2,013
Contributions from plan members -
Actuarial loss (5,339
Benefits paid (2,674)
Past service costs/plan amendments 129
Closing defined benefit obligation £ 105,210
Changes in the fair value of the total Plan assets are as follows:
2018
Share
£000
Opening fair value of plan assets 65,100
RiverStone Insurance share of fair value of plan assets transferred 50,697
Interest income 1,988
Plan administration expenses (189)
Actuarial loss (5,235)
Contributions by the employer 4,098
Contributions by plan members -
Benefits paid (2,674)
Closing fair value of plan assets £ 113,785

The total amounts recognised in the Profit and Loss Accounts of RiverStone Insurance and RiverStone
Insurance (UK) for the Plan, together with those in respect of RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s share, are

as follows:
2018 2017 2017
Total 2018  Total Plan Share
Plan Share Restated Restated
£000 £000 £000 £000
Employer’s part of current service cost 1,786 930 1,831 897
Employer’s part of past service cost 129 129 - -
Gain on settlements and curtailments - - - -
Net interest income 15 25 (89) (52)
Plan administration expenses 271 189 318 184
Total expense included in profit and
loss account £ 2201 £ 1273 £ 2,060 £ 1,029
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12.

The amounts recognised as re-measurements of net defined benefit obligation in the Statements of Other
Comprehensive Income of RiverStone Insurance and RiverStone Insurance (UK) for the Plan, together
with those in respect of RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s share, are as follows:

2018 2017 2017
Total 2018 Total Plan Share
Plan Share Restated Restated
£000 £000 £000 £000
Actuarial loss (gain) on defined benefit
obligation (8,523) (5,339) 5,316 3,083
Actuarial loss (gain) on fair value of Plan
assets 3,430 5,235 208 121
Re-measurements of net defined benefit
obligation £ (5093) £ (104 £ 5,524 £ 3,204
The current allocation of the Plan’s assets is as follows:
31% December 31 December
2018 2017
Equity instruments 70% 70%
Cash 30% 30%
100% 100%

The Plan does not invest in any employer-related investments or employer-related properties.

The total actual return on the Plan’s assets over the year was a loss of £505,000 (2017: £3.8 million
gain).

Investment Return

2018 2017
Restated
£000 £000
Investment income
Income from available for sale financial assets 180 1,259
Income from financial assets at fair value through profit and loss —
designated upon initial recognition 10,601 382
Deposit interest 66 17
Income from treasury bills 1,547 1,495
Interest from affiliated company 7,499 7,536
Expense ceded under reinsurance contract (505) (151)

£ 19,388 £ 10,538

Realised gains(losses) on investments

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss:

Held for trading 9,362 16,615
Available for sale financial assets - (10)

£ 9,362 £ 16,605
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13.

14.

15.

(a)

(b)

Other Income

Waiving of amount owed to parent undertaking

2018

£000

133,400 £

2017
Restated
£000

Other income comprises the waiving by RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s parent of the intercompany
balance referred to in Note 6, with the difference in amount representing foreign exchange on conversion

to functional currency.

Investment Expenses and Charges

Investment Expenses

Tax

Tax on Profit (Loss)

Current tax

UK corporation tax at 19% (2017: 19.25%) based on the profit
(loss) for the year

Group relief claimed for nil consideration

Withholding tax

Prior year adjustment

Total current tax (credit) charge

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences

Total tax (credit) charge
Tax expense included in Other Comprehensive Income

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences

2018 2017
Restated
£000 £000
1,460 £ 1,039
2018 2017
Restated
£000 £2000
4,411 9,268
- (501
1,036 37
(118) (237)
(3,493) 8,567
480 393
3,013) £ 8,960
18 £ (545)
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(©)

16.

Factors affecting the tax charge for the year

The corporation tax assessed for the year differs to the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19%
(2017: 19.25%). The differences are explained below:

2018 2017

Restated

£000 £000

Profit (loss) before tax £ 118,417 £ 49,567

Profit (loss) before tax multiplied by the UK corporate

tax rate of 19% (2017: 19.25%) 22,499 9,542
Non-taxable dividend income (1,318) (120)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 207 133
Intercompany write off not taxable (25,346) -
Available for sale investment movements 48 82
Tax effect of rate changes (56) 52)
Withholding tax 1,036 37
Tax on overseas earnings 35 75
Group relief claimed for nil consideration - (501)
Prior year adjustment (118) (237)
Total tax charge (credit) for the year £ 3,013) £ 8,960

Tax rate changes

The tax rate for the current year is lower than the prior year, due to changes in the UK corporation tax
rate, which decreased from 20% to 19% from 1* April 2017. Changes to the UK corporation tax rates
were substantively enacted as part of Finance Bill 2016 (on 6" September 2016). These include
reductions to the main rate to reduce the rate to 17% from 1 April 2020. Deferred taxes at the balance
sheet date have been measured using these enacted tax rates and reflected in these financial statements.

Investments in Subsidiary Undertakings

RiverStone Insurance (UK) directly owns all of the ordinary issued share capital of RiverStone
Luxembourg S.a.r.1., which is valued at cost.

Shareholders’ Profit Shareholders’

Cost Cost Equity at And Equity at
2017 2018 31 Dec 2017 Loss 31 Dec 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
RiverStone Luxembourg S.a.r.1
Dormant £ 11 £ 11 £ - £ 9 £ (&)]

RiverStone Luxembourg S.a.r.1 was incorporated on 14" June 2016. Its registered address is 20 Rue
Eugene Ruppert, L-2453 Luxembourg.
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17. Other Financial Investments

(a)  Other Financial Investments by Category

Market Historic
Market Value Historic Cost
Value 2017 Cost 2017
2018 Restated 2018 Restated
£000 £000 £°000 £000
Financial Assets — at fair value through profit and loss
Shares and other variable-yield securities and units
in unit trusts - designated at fair value through
profit and loss on initial recognition 208,107 98,890 239,628 90,473
Debt securities and other fixed interest securities
designated at fair value through profit and loss
on initial recognition 583,530 195,934 579,688 194,004
Derivative financial instruments - at fair value
through profit and loss, held for trading 3,282 339 75 -
£ 794919 £ 295163 £ 819,391 £ 284,477
Available for sale
Equity shares - 42 - 35
Debt securities and other fixed income securities 5,301 5,315 6,343 6,116

5,301 5,357 6,343 6,151

£ 800,220 £ 300,520 £ 825,734 £ 290,628

Financial Liabilities

Derivative financial instruments - at fair value
through profit and loss, held for trading £ 322 £ 174 £ - £ -
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(b)

(c)

Listed Investments

Included in carrying values of financial assets above are amounts in respect of listed investments as
follows:

2018 2017
Restated
£000 £000
At fair value through profit and loss
Debt securities and other fixed-income securities designated at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition 371,949 31,155
Equity shares 156,532 67,710
528,481 98,865
Available for sale
Debt securities and other fixed-income securities 5,301 5,315
Total listed investments £ 533,782 &£ 104,180
Derivative Financial Instruments at Fair Value through Profit and Loss
Market Historic
Market Value Historic Cost
Value 2017 Cost 2017
2018 Restated 2018 Restated
£000 £000 £000 £000
Derivative financial instruments assets
Foreign currency forward contracts 3,165 339 - -
Inflation linked swap contracts 117 - 75 -
£ 3,282 £ 339 £ 75 £ -
Derivative financial instruments liabilities
Foreign currency forward contracts 322 - - -
Short forward — Government bonds - 174 - -
£ 322 & 174 £ - £ -

The functional currency of RiverStone Insurance (UK) is Pound Sterling and consequently is exposed
to foreign exchange movements in currencies other than Pound Sterling. RiverStone Insurance (UK) has
foreign currency forward contracts in place to provide protection against the impact of potential adverse
fluctuations in exchange rates on RiverStone Insurance (UK’s) net asset positions.
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The foreign currency forward contracts are measured at fair value, which is determined using valuation
techniques that utilise observable inputs. The key inputs used in valuing the derivatives are the forward

exchange rates for USD: GBP.

Contract/Notional
Market Value Amount
2017 2017
2018 Restated 2018 Restated
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Foreign currency contracts £ 2,843 £ 339 £ 462,019 £ 19,367

(d) Disclosures of Fair Values in Accordance with the Fair Value Hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
A fair value through profit and loss
Debt securities and other fixed-income
securities designated at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition 207,704 359,403 16,423 583,530
Equity shares 122,659 59,675 25,773 208,107
Derivative financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss, held for
trading - - 3,282 3,282
Available for sale
Debt securities and other fixed-income
securities 5,301 5,301
Total £ 330,363 £ 424379 £ 45478 £ 800,220
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(e

A fair value through profit and loss

Debt securities and other fixed-income
securities designated at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition

Equity shares

Derivative financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss, held for
trading

Available for sale
Equity shares
Debt securities and other fixed-income

securities

Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2017 2017 2017 2017
Restated Restated Restated Restated
£°000 £000 £°000 £000
164,780 31,154 - 195,934
67,711 27,666 3,513 98,890

- - 339 339

- - 42 42

- 5,315 - 5,315

£ 232491 £ 64,135 £ 3,894 £ 300,520

Level 3 investments valuations are based on third party broker quotes.

Level 3 Pricing

Level 3 valuation techniques are used by RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s investment manager’s
independent pricing service providers and third party broker-dealers and include comparisons with
similar instruments where observable market prices exist, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing
models, and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants. RiverStone Insurance
(UK)’s investment manager assesses the reasonableness of pricing received from these third party
sources by comparing the fair values received to recent transaction prices for similar assets, where
available, to industry accepted discounted cash flow models (that incorporate estimates of the amount
and timing of future cash flows and market observable inputs such as credit spreads and discount rates)
and to option pricing models (that incorporate market observable inputs including the quoted price,
volatility and dividend yield of the underlying security and the risk free rate).
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® Reconciliation of Movements in Level 3 Financial Investments Measured at Fair Value
At Fair Value Through Available
Profit and Loss for Sale
Debt Equity Equity
Securities Shares Derivatives Shares Total
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January - 3,513 339 42 3,894
Total gains recognised in the profit
and loss account 6,271) (2,183) 2,866 - (5,588)
Purchases 22,694 24,569 77 - 47,340
Sales - (168) - - (168)
Restatement of Available for Sale
to Fair Value through Profit & Loss - 42 - (42) -
Total £ 16423 £ 25773 £ 3,282 £ - £ 45478
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
Restated Restated Restated Restated Restated
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January - 9,024 123 40 9,187
Total gains recognised in the profit
and loss account - 1,946 216 2 2,164
Purchases - 429 - 429
Sales - (7,886) - - (7,886)
Total £ - £ 3513 £ 339 £ 42 £ 3,894

Total losses of £5.6 million (2017: gains of £2.2 million) comprise realised gains of £Nil (2017: £2.2
million) and unrealised losses of £5.6 million (2017: gains of Nil) on Level 3 financial investments held
during the year, all of which are presented in the net investment return in the profit and loss account.

There were no transfers from Level 2 to Level 3 during the year (2017: transfer between Level 2 to 3,

with a market value of £Nil).

There were no transfers between Level 3 and Level 1, or between Levels 1 and 2 during the year.

(g) Collateralised Investments

RiverStone Insurance (UK) has outstanding letters of credit, guarantees and deposits of £158,388,438
(2017: £100,936,951) issued in favour of cedants and certain other creditors collateralised by
investments and cash with a market value of £154,798,859 and a cost of £153,587,455 (2017: market

value £111,754,255; cost £111,537,745).

18. Reinsurers’ Share of Technical Provisions — Claims Outstanding

Included within reinsurer’s share of technical provisions — claims outstanding are amounts recoverable
from a number of affiliated companies of £326.3 million (2017: £70.0 million) in respect of quota share

reinsurance contracts.
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19. Debtors Arising Out of Direct Insurance Operations

2018 2017
Restated
£000 £000
Amounts owed by intermediaries £ 1,254 £ 86
20. Debtors Arising Out of Reinsurance Operations
2018 2017
Restated
£000 £000
Amounts owed by reinsurers and intermediaries 58,935 18,048
Amounts owed by group undertakings 36,753 48,329

£ 95,689 £ 66,377

21. Other Debtors

2018 2017

Restated

£000 £000

Amounts owed by group undertakings 105,127 110,085
Tax 4,552 -
Other debtors 2 97

£ 109681 £ 110,182

22. Called up Share Capital

2018 2017
Allotted
90,000,010 (2017: 10) Ordinary Shares of £1 - fully paid £ 90,000,010 £ 10
10 (2017: 10) 'A' Ordinary Shares of £1 - fully paid £ 10 £ 10
157,062,215 (2017: 157,062,215) Ordinary Shares of $1
- fully paid $ 157,062,215 $ 157,062,215

In all respects Ordinary US Dollar Shares rank pari passu with the Ordinary Pound Sterling Shares.
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Allotted, issued and called up share capital presented in US dollars as adopted in the Financial

Statements:
2018 2017
Restated
£°000 £000
90,000,010 (2017: 10) Ordinary Shares of £1 - fully paid 90,000 -
10 (2017: 10) ‘A’ Ordinary Shares of £1 - fully paid - -
157,062,215 (2017: 157,062,215) Ordinary Shares of £1 - fully paid 81,904 81,904

£ 171904 £ 81,904

On 7% June 2018, 90,000,000 ordinary £1 shares were issued for cash consideration, all of which were
fully paid up.

Due to the change in presentational currency from US dollars to Pound Sterling for RiverStone Insurance
(UK) from 1* October 2018, the prior period of 2017 has been restated. Share capital issued in
currencies other than RiverStone Insurance (UK)’s functional currency of Pound Sterling has been
restated using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates the shares were issued. These were the exchange
rates at 31 December 2004 of 1.9233 and at 30" September 2006 of 1.8679.

23. Creditors Arising Out of Reinsurance Operations

2018 2017

Restated

£000 £°000

Balances owed to cedants and intermediaries 26,272 6,946
Amounts owed to group undertaking 26,604 33,943

£ 52876 £ 40,889

24. Other Creditors Including Tax and Social Security

2018 2017

Restated

£000 £000

Tax - 5,137
Other Creditors 10,452 -

w

10452 £ 5,137
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25.

26.

(@)

(b)

27.

Deferred Tax
2018 2017
Restated
£000 £000
Asset (liability) at 1% January 2018 72 (73)
Transferred from RiverStone Insurance (1,032) -
Recognition of future timing differences (498) 145
(Liability) asset at 31 December 2018 £ (1458) £ 72

The deferred tax provision comprises the timing difference in respect of the net amount recorded on the
balance sheet for the defined benefit pension scheme and is based on a future tax rate of 17% (2017:
17%). The amount of deferred tax asset that will reverse in 2019 is dependent on the movement in the
net amount recorded on the balance sheet for the defined benefit pension scheme, which will be
dependent on changes to the underlying assumptions. RiverStone Insurance (UK) has no unused tax
losses or unused tax credits.

Litigation and Contingent Liabilities

RiverStone Insurance (UK) is regularly involved, directly or indirectly, in litigation in the ordinary
course of conducting its business including certain cases relating to asbestos and environmental
pollution claims, as more fully described in Note 4. In the judgment of the Directors, none of these cases,
individually or collectively, are likely to result in judgments for amounts which, net of loss and loss
adjustment expense reserves previously established and reinsurance recoverables which RiverStone
Insurance (UK) believes are probable of realisation, would have a material effect on the financial
position of RiverStone Insurance (UK).

RiverStone Insurance (UK) has provided a guarantee of the solvency of its affiliate, RiverStone
Managing Agency Limited, of up to £1 million.

Related Party Transactions and Immediate and Ultimate Parent Company

RiverStone Insurance (UK) is a wholly owned subsidiary of RiverStone Holdings Limited which is
registered in England and Wales. The ultimate parent company and controlling party is Fairfax which
is registered in Canada and listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange.

Advantage has been taken of the exemption from the requirement to disclose transactions with related
parties within the same group as provided by FRS102, Section 33.1A. This exemption is available for
RiverStone Insurance (UK) as consolidated financial statements are publicly available for Fairfax.

Fairfax is the smallest and largest group of undertakings to consolidate these financial statements and
its registered office is 95 Wellington Street West, Suite 800, Toronto, Ontario, Canada, M5J 2N7. The
financial statements of Fairfax can be obtained from the Corporate Secretary at this address or from the
website at www.fairfax.ca.

Page 51 of 51



